based programs to significantly improve court responses to sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking cases utilizing proven specialized court processes to ensure victim safety and offender accountability. The program challenges courts and court-based programs to work with their communities to develop specialized practices and educational resources that will result in significantly improved responses to sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence and stalking cases, ensure offender accountability, and promote informed judicial decision making.

- (5) An estimate of the total number of respondents and the amount of time estimated for an average respondent to respond/reply: It is estimated that it will take the approximately 23 respondents (grantees from the Court Training and Improvements Program) approximately one hour to complete a semi-annual progress report. The semi-annual progress report is divided into sections that pertain to the different types of activities in which grantees may engage. A Court Training and Improvements Program grantee will only be required to complete the sections of the form that pertain to its own specific activities.
- (6) An estimate of the total public burden (in hours) associated with the collection: The total annual hour burden to complete the data collection forms is 46 hours, that is 23 grantees completing a form twice a year with an estimated completion time for the form being one hour.

If additional information is required contact: Lynn Bryant, Department Clearance Officer, United States Department of Justice, Justice Management Division, Policy and Planning Staff, Two Constitution Square, 145 N Street, NE., Suite 2E–502, Washington, DC 20530.

Dated: July 15, 2010.

## Lynn Bryant,

Department Clearance Officer, PRA, United States Department of Justice.

[FR Doc. 2010-17688 Filed 7-19-10; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410-FX-P

#### **DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE**

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree Under the Clean Air Act; Clean Water Act; Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; Safe Drinking Water Act; Toxic Substances Control Act; and the Reporting Requirements of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act and the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act

Notice is hereby given that on July 14, 2010, a proposed Consent Decree in *United States et al.* v. *McWane, Inc.,* Civil Action No. CV-10-JEO-1902-S was lodged with the United States District Court for the Northern District of Alabama.

In this action the United States sought injunctive relief and civil penalties for violations of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401 to 7671q ("CAA"); Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1311 to 1387 ("CWA"); Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. 6901 to 6992k; Safe Drinking Water Act ("SDWA"), 42 U.S.C. 300f to 300j-26; Toxic Substances Control Act ("TSCA"), 15 U.S.C. 2601 to 2692, and the reporting requirements of the **Emergency Planning and Community** Right-to-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. 11001 to 11050 ("EPCRA"); Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act ("CERCLA"), 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq., together with their implementing regulations and permits, at twenty-eight of McWane's facilities in fourteen states. McWane, Inc. is a national company operating iron foundries, brass foundries, and various valve and tank manufacturing facilities. McWane's major plants by industry include four pipe plants, four valve and hydrant plants, seven soil pipe and utility fittings plants, seven tank manufacturing plants and one fire extinguisher plant. Most of these facilities operate under trade names, including Tyler Pipe, Manchester Tank, Pacific States, Kennedy Valve, M & H Valve, Clow, Ransom Industries, Union Foundry, Empire Coke Company, Amerex Corporation, Atlantic States, and Anaco. The Alabama Department of Environmental Management and the State of Iowa are co-plaintiffs in this

Under the proposed Consent Decree, McWane will pay a civil penalty of \$4,000,000 (to be divided among the United States, Alabama and Iowa), implement a slate of Supplemental Environmental Projects at a cost of \$9,154,050, and complete the final evaluation of a comprehensive, corporate-wide Environmental Management System (EMS) at all of its facilities. McWane has already undertaken corrective measures to resolve all the violations alleged in the Complaint, at a cost of over \$7.6 million. The proposed Consent Decree resolves only the specific violations alleged in the Complaint.

The Department of Justice will receive for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication comments relating to the proposed Consent Decree. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General, Environment and Natural Resources Division, and either e-mailed to pubcomment-ees.enrd@usdoj.gov or mailed to P.O. Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044–7611, and should refer to United States v. McWane, Inc., D.J. Ref. 90–5–1–1–08282.

The Consent Decree may be examined at the Office of the United States Attorney for the Northern District of Alabama, 1801 4th Avenue North, Birmingham, Alabama 35203–2101, and at the following U.S. EPA Regions: Region 1 (CT, MA, ME, NH, RI, VT), Environmental Protection Agency, 5 Post Office Square—Suite 100, Boston, MA 02109–3912, Phone: (617) 918–1111, Fax: (617) 918–1809, Toll free within Region 1: (888) 372–7341.

Region 2 (NJ, NY, PR, VI), Environmental Protection Agency, 290 Broadway, New York, NY 10007–1866, Phone: (212) 637–3000, Fax: (212) 637–

Region 3 (DC, DE, MD, PA, VA, WV), Environmental Protection Agency, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103— 2029, Phone: (215) 814–5000, Fax: (215) 814–5103, Toll free: (800) 438–2474.

Region 4 (AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN), Environmental Protection Agency, Atlanta Federal Center, 61 Forsyth Street, SW., Atlanta, GA 30303–3104, Phone: (404) 562–9900, Fax: (404) 562–8174, Toll free: (800) 241–1754.

Region 5 (IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI), Environmental Protection Agency, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, IL 60604–3507, Phone: (312) 353–2000 Fax: (312) 353–4135, Toll free within Region 5: (800) 621–8431

Region 6 (AR, LA, NM, OK, TX), 1445 Ross Avenue, Dallas, TX 75202–2733, Phone: (214) 665–2200, Fax: (214) 665– 7113, Toll free within Region 6: (800) 887–6063).

Region 7 (IA, KS, MO, NE), Environmental Protection Agency, 901 North 5th Street, Kansas City, KS 66101, Phone: (913) 551–7003, Toll free: (800) 223–0425. Region 8 (CO, MT, ND, SD, UT,WY), Environmental Protection Agency, 1595 Wynkoop St., Denver, CO 80202–1129, Phone: (303) 312–6312, Fax: (303) 312–6339

Region 9 (AZ, CA, HI, NV), Environmental Protection Agency, 75 Hawthorne Street, San Francisco, CA 94105, Phone: (415) 947–8000, (866) EPA–WEST (toll free in Region 9), Fax: (415) 947–3553.

Region 10 (AK, ID, OR, WA), Environmental Protection Agency, 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900, Seattle, WA 98101, Phone: (206) 553–1200, Fax: (206) 553–2955, Toll free: (800) 424– 4372.

EPA Headquarters: Office of Civil Enforcement, Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance, 2100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington DC 20460, (202) 564–2220.

During the public comment period, the Consent Decree may also be examined on the following Department of Justice Web site, at http:// www.usdoj.gov/enrd/ Consent Decrees.html. A copy of the Consent Decree may also be obtained by mail from the Consent Decree Library, P.O. Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044-7611 or by faxing or e-mailing a request to Tonia Fleetwood (tonia.fleetwood@usdoj.gov), fax no. (202) 514-0097, phone confirmation number (202) 514-1547. In requesting a copy from the Consent Decree Library, please enclose a check in the amount of \$33.70 (25 cents per page reproduction cost) payable to the U.S. Treasury or, if by e-mail or fax, forward a check in that amount to the Consent Decree Library at the stated address.

#### Maureen Katz,

Assistant Section Chief Environmental Enforcement Section, Environment and Natural Resources Division.

[FR Doc. 2010–17600 Filed 7–19–10; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410-15-P

### **DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE**

#### Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree Under the Clean Air Act

Notice is hereby given that on July 13, 2010, a proposed Consent Decree in *United States* v. *Edgeboro Disposal, Inc., et al.,* Civil Action No. 3:10–cv–03541–FLW–TJB, was filed with the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey.

In this action, the United States sought penalties and injunctive relief for the Defendants' violations of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7411 *et seq.*, and the New Jersey Air Pollution Control Act,

N.J.S.A. 26:2C–1 *et seq.*, at the Edgeboro landfill in East Brunswick, New Jersey.

To resolve the United States' claims, the Defendants will pay a penalty of \$750,000 to the United States and New Jersey, and shall upgrade the Edgeboro Landfill Gas Collection and Control System, and operate that system in compliance with regulations promulgated pursuant to the Clean Air Act.

The Department of Justice will receive for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication comments relating to the Consent Decree. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General, **Environment and Natural Resources** Division, and either e-mailed to pubcomment-ees.enrd@usdoj.gov or mailed to P.O. Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044-7611, and should refer to either: United States v. Edgeboro Disposal, Inc., et al., Civil Action No. 3:10-cv-03541-FLW-TJB, or D.J. Ref. 90-5-2-1-09122. The Consent Decree may be examined at the Office of the United States Attorney, District of New Jersey, 970 Broad Street, Room 502, Newark, New Jersey 07102, and at the United States Environmental Protection Agency, 290 Broadway New York, New York 10007–1866. During the public comment period, the Consent Decree may also be examined on the following Department of Justice Web site, http://www.usdoj.gov/enrd/ Consent Decrees.html. A copy of the Consent Decree may also be obtained by mail from the Consent Decree Library, P.O. Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044–7611 or by faxing or e-mailing a request to Tonia Fleetwood (tonia.fleetwood@usdoj.gov), fax no. (202) 514-0097, phone confirmation number (202) 514-1547. In requesting a copy from the Consent Decree Library, please enclose a check, payable to the U.S. Treasury, in the amount of \$15.50 (25 cents per page reproduction cost), or, if by e-mail or fax, forward a check in the applicable amount to the Consent Decree Library at the stated address.

#### Maureen Katz,

Assistant Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section, Environment and Natural Resources

[FR Doc. 2010–17601 Filed 7–19–10; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–15–P

## **DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE**

# Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree Pursuant to the Clean Air Act

Notice is hereby given that on July 14, 2010, a proposed Consent Decree in

*United States* v. *City of Tacoma*, Civ. A. No. 3:10–cv–05497, was lodged with the United States Court for the Western District of Washington in Tacoma.

In this action, the United States sought penalties pursuant to Section 608(c) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7671g, against the City of Tacoma's Public Works Department. The Complaint alleges that Defendant failed to comply with regulations issued pursuant to Section 608(c) of the CAA-40 CFR Part 82, Subpart F—that makes the knowing venting or release of Class I or II refrigerants into the environment during the disposal of a refrigerantcontaining appliance unlawful. The Complaint alleges the City of Tacoma, through its Solid Waste Management Division that is internal to the Public Works Department, illegally released regulated refrigerant into the environment for almost three years dating from October 2004 to August 2007 at its municipal landfill.

Pursuant to the proposed Consent Decree, Defendant will pay to the United States a civil penalty of \$224,684 and perform a Supplemental Environmental Project that will cost approximately \$269,783. The SEP consists of the City purchasing a hydraulic launch assist refuse collection vehicle, purchasing a pluggable hybrid electric terminal truck to replace one of the City's diesel vard tractors, and retrofitting 10 of its municipal diesel vehicles with diesel particulate filters. The hydraulic launch assist refuse collection vehicle is designed to be more efficient by using energy created during braking as well as increase fuel economy and reduce particulate emissions typically emitted from traditional refuse collection vehicles. The pluggable hybrid electric terminal truck is designed to decrease diesel fuel use and reduce emissions as well as increase the City's fuel economy. The diesel particulate filters are aimed to reduce particulate matter emissions as well as carbon monoxide and hydrocarbons emissions. Overall, these projects are intended to help improve air quality in and around the City's municipal landfill by reducing smogforming chemicals such as ground level ozone, particulates, and nitrous oxides (as well as carbon dioxide).

The Department of Justice will receive for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication comments relating to the Consent Decree.

Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General,
Environment and Natural Resources Division, and either e-mailed to pubcomment-ees.enrd@usdoj.gov or mailed to P.O. Box 7611, U.S.